

**CONSOLIDATION OF
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
THE ESTATE PLANNING COUNCIL OF SASKATOON**

ARTICLE 1

NAME

The name of this association shall be “**The Estate Planning Council of Saskatoon**” (hereinafter referred to as the “Council”).

ARTICLE 2

OBJECTS

The objects of the Council are to provide an opportunity for its members to discuss all the subjects necessary in the planning and administration of estates, and to promote discussion of these and other topics of mutual interest;

To develop a knowledge of the functions of the various professions so engaged, and the relationship of each to the other for the benefit of all, and to strive for the fullest co-operation and understanding of each other’s function in the interests, protection and enlightenment of its members, their mutual clients and the general public;

To study legislation and amendments concerning taxes, estates and other matters pertaining to the administration of estates, and to submit proposals respecting such legislation or proposed amendments thereto;

The Council shall be advisory in character and shall have no power to bind any of its members in respect to any conclusions or to any action whatsoever.

ARTICLE 3

MEMBERSHIP

1. Each member of the Council shall have one vote. The membership of the Council shall consist of:

- (a) Not more than twenty (20) persons from each of the following three (3) professional groups:
 - (i) Barristers and Solicitors - being members in good standing of the Law Society of Saskatchewan;
 - (ii) Accountants – being members in good standing of the Institute of Chartered

Professional Accountants of Saskatchewan;

- (iii) Financial Planners - being persons holding any one or more of the following designations:
 - Certified Financial Planner ("CFP")
 - Certified Financial Analyst ("CFA")
 - Designation equivalent to CFP or CFA

- (b) Not more than ten (10) persons from each of the following two (2) professional groups:
 - (i) Chartered Life Underwriters;

 - (ii) Trust officers, who shall be employed in the area of trust management by a federal trust company.

- (c) Not more than ten (10) persons from the professional group of Planned Giving Officers, who shall be:
 - (i) employed full time in the capacity of planned giving officer or similar function, with such employment being with an organization which is registered as a charity for taxation purposes; AND

 - (ii) a member of the Canadian Association of Gift Planners.

Provided however, that the Executive Committee of the Council shall be provided with the power to determine whether a prospective member not fitting the categories listed above will be allowed, if they are a strong candidate, but do not have one of the specific designations.

2. Each member shall have their place of business within the City of Saskatoon, Saskatchewan, and other surrounding communities as approved by the Executive Committee.

3. The original members shall be those persons adopting these articles of association and subsequent members shall be those persons who are from time to time approved by a majority vote of the Executive Committee after having been recommended by the Membership Committee.

4. The intent is for the Council to include a balance of representation from different organizations and firms throughout Saskatoon and those surrounding communities approved by the Executive Committee.

5. If any member shall fail to attend at least sixty (60%) percent of the meetings held during any one business year, May to the following May, their membership may be terminated by the Executive Committee.

6. Should a member of the Council not be able to attend a regular meeting, such member shall be entitled to be represented at the meeting by an alternate attending in such member's place, provided that:

- (a) such alternate shall not be entitled to speak or to vote in respect of any matter of business to be transacted by the members at such meeting; and
- (b) for the purposes of Paragraph 5 of this Article 3, attendance by such alternate shall not be considered to be attendance by the member whom such alternate represents.

7. In the event that a member wishes to retire from membership in the Council and transfer their membership to an individual who qualifies as a member of the category of membership held by the departing member, such member may apply in writing to the Executive Committee of the Council to approve such transfer, provided, however, that any such transfer shall be within the discretion of the Executive Committee.

8. Subject to the approval of the Council the Executive Committee shall have the power to admit to Special Membership in the Council persons not otherwise qualified as herein provided but whose membership in the Council would be beneficial to the Council. Each Special Membership shall be subject to annual review and to the payment of such annual fees as may be required to be paid by the members of the Council.

ARTICLE 4
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

1. The affairs of the Council shall be managed by an Executive Committee comprising subject to Article 4, Paragraph 2, not less than nine (9) members and not more than twelve (12) members of the Council. The Past President shall be a member of the Executive Committee without election by virtue of the office of President during the previous year. The remaining eight (8) to eleven (11) members shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting of the Council as hereinafter provided.

2. Each of the groups referred to in paragraph 1 of Article 3 shall have one (1) representative on the Executive Committee in the case where such group has at least four (4) members in the Council.

3. The Executive Committee may fill any vacancy which occurs between annual meetings.

4. In the event a member of the Executive Committee fails to attend two (2) consecutive meetings of the Executive Committee, their membership on the Executive Committee shall terminate unless, in the opinion of the Executive Committee, there were extenuating circumstances, in which case the Executive Committee shall have power to allow membership on the Committee to be continued subject to such conditions it deems appropriate.

ARTICLE 5
OFFICERS

The Officers of the Council shall consist of the Immediate Past President, President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, Membership Officer and Meeting Arrangements Officer. These officers shall be elected at the annual meeting and shall hold office for one (1) year. There is the expectation that the Vice-President shall become the President in the year following their term as Vice-President.

ARTICLE 6
QUORUMS

Any four (4) members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the Committee shall have the power to fill, for the unexpired term, any vacancy which may occur in the offices, provided that at least four (4) members of the Committee vote unanimously in favour of the appointment.

One-fourth (1/4) of the members of the Council shall constitute a quorum at any regular, special or annual general meeting of the Council.

ARTICLE 7
NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

The Executive Committee shall, at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of any annual meeting, encourage members to seek election for the Executive Committee. Any member, by notice in writing filed with the Secretary at least five (5) days before the meeting, may nominate a candidate for the Executive Committee with the consent of the nominee, and the members shall be entitled to vote for such nominated candidates at such annual meeting.

ARTICLE 8
ANNUAL MEETINGS AND SPECIAL MEETINGS

The first Annual General Meeting of the Council was held in September, 1970 and subsequent Annual General Meetings of the Council shall be held in May of each year thereafter at such time and place as may be selected by the Executive Committee.

Special Meetings shall be called at the request of the President or, in the President's absence, by the Vice-President or upon the written request of three (3) members.

The Secretary shall send to each member a notice of each Annual General Meeting and of each Special Meeting at least ten (10) days prior to the date thereof.

ARTICLE 9
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by the President at the President's discretion, or when requested to do so by three (3) members of the Committee. It shall be the duty of the Executive Committee to establish rules of procedure and practice for any meeting subject to the approval of, or amendment by the Council. In the case of a tie vote, the President shall cast the deciding ballot.

ARTICLE 10
COMMITTEES

The Executive Committee shall have the power to appoint such committees as may be required to carry out the proper functions of the Council, and to delegate to such committees such power and authority as it shall deem advisable.

ARTICLE 11
REGULAR MEETINGS

Meetings for the furtherance of the objects of the Council may be called by the Executive Committee at stated times, or from time to time in its discretion, and the programme of such meetings shall be arranged by the Executive Committee.

The Secretary shall send to each member a notice of each such meeting at least seven (7) days prior to the date thereof.

Notice of each such meeting and of each Annual General Meeting and of each Special Meeting shall be in writing and may be sent by ordinary mail to the member's address in the records of the Council or by email to the member's email address in the records of the Council and shall be deemed to have been received by the member on the first business day following the date of its deposit in the mail or the date of its transmission by email, as the case may be.

ARTICLE 12
PRESIDENT

The President shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Council and of the Executive Committee. The President shall also be charged with the general management and supervision of the affairs and operations of the Council.

ARTICLE 13
VICE-PRESIDENT

The Vice-President shall exercise the duties and powers of the President during the absence or inability of the President.

ARTICLE 14
SECRETARY

The Secretary shall be responsible for maintaining an accurate list of all members, shall keep minutes of each Annual General Meeting and Special Meeting of the Council, and the Executive Committee; shall keep all records of the Council and Executive Committee other than financial records, and shall give notice of meetings of the Council and the Executive Committee to all members thereof.

ARTICLE 15
TREASURER

The Treasurer shall have custody of all funds and property of the Council and shall deposit all funds of the Council in a bank or trust company located in the City of Saskatoon. All withdrawals of such funds shall be by: (i) e-transfer for amounts of \$1000.00 or less per month, or greater amounts with the approval of the President; or (ii) by cheques signed by any two of the President, Vice-President and Treasurer. The Treasurer shall prepare a statement of the financial affairs of the Council as at the end of each fiscal year of the Council, and shall submit each statement to the Executive Committee of the Council within thirty (30) days of the end of each such fiscal year.

ARTICLE 16
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of the financial affairs of the Council shall be submitted to the members of the Council at such time and in such manner as the Executive Committee thinks fit, provided, however, that such statement shall be submitted to the members of the Council prior to the commencement of the Council's activities for the succeeding year.

ARTICLE 17
FINANCIAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Council shall be from July 1 to June 30, or as otherwise determined by the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE 18
EXPENSES AND DUES

The expenses of the Council shall be provided for by annual dues from each member, the amount of which shall from time to time be fixed by the Executive Committee with the approval of Council. Membership fees shall be payable on adoption of these Articles and thereafter on or before the 30th day of October of each fiscal year. Any member not paying fees that are due shall not be entitled to attend any meeting or vote unless and until their membership is paid in full.

ARTICLE 19
DISCIPLINE

The Executive Committee shall have the power to expel from the Council any member guilty of a breach of these Articles or whose conduct is not in keeping with the purposes of the Council, provided that at least four (4) members of the Executive Committee so vote.

ARTICLE 20
NO ACCREDITATION

A member shall not publicly promote themselves as having additional credentials due solely to their membership in the Council, or in any way give the impression that the Council is a professional accrediting body.

ARTICLE 21
AMENDMENTS

These Articles may be amended at any Annual General Meeting or Special Meeting of the Council by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Council present at such meeting, provided that notice setting forth such proposed amendment or amendments shall have been sent to all of the members at least ten (10) days prior to the date of such Meeting.

May 11, 2021